
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, September 24, 2013                                                                    City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council subcommittee will conduct exit interviews beginning at 6:20 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
• Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation – October 2013 (Victoria Throm) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-2. Ratify City Manager’s Signature on Agreement with Covington Retail Associates 

(Matheson) 
C-3. Adopt PRePAC Charter (Thomas) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  August 8 meeting and September 12 Off-Site Visit. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  September 12 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Daniel Key:  August 29 meeting; regular meetings in September canceled. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  August 22 meeting. 
• Future Meetings: Parks & Recreation:  Next meeting October 16; September regular 

meeting canceled. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Reject All Bids for the Aquatic Center Renovation Project (Thomas) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: September 24, 2013 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #29957—30023, in the Amount of $204,048.06, Dated 
September 4, 2013; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1001578146-1001578164 and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1001578264-1001578264 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$149,320.65, Dated September 13, 2013. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #29957—30023, in the Amount 
of $204,048.06, Dated September 4, 2013; Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1001578146-1001578164 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1001578264-
1001578264 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$149,320.65, Dated September 13, 2013. 
. 
 
 
 

 

1 of 34



2 of 34



3 of 34



4 of 34



5 of 34



6 of 34



7 of 34



8 of 34



9 of 34



10 of 34



11 of 34



12 of 34



13 of 34



14 of 34



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date:  September 24, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  RATIFY THE CITY MANAGER’S SIGNATURE TO EXECUTE AN 

AGREEMENT OF SUBORDINATION, NONDISTURBANCE AND 
ATTORNMENT AND TENANT ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE FOR COVINGTON 
RETAIL ASSOCIATES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. Agreement of subordination, nondisturbance and attornment 
2. Tenant estoppel certificate 

 
PREPARED BY:  Casey Parker, Senior Accountant 
  
EXPLANATION:   
Covington Retail Associates, the City Hall Landlord, is in the process of refinancing the City 
Hall property.  As part of that process the City is required as part of our lease to provide these 
documents within ten calendar days.  This matter was expedited to comply with our lease 
agreement.  Staff is now seeking the Council’s ratification of the City Manager’s execution of 
these documents.   
 
ALTERNATIVES:  None.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impact.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance           Resolution      X     Motion             
Other 
 

Council member _______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to ratify the City Manager’s signature to execute an agreement of 
subordination, nondisturbance and attornment and tenant estoppel 
certificate for Covington Retail Associates. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 
   City Attorney 

Finance Director 

15 of 34



ATTACHMENT 1

16 of 34



17 of 34



18 of 34



19 of 34



20 of 34



21 of 34



ATTACHMENT 2

22 of 34



23 of 34



24 of 34



Consent Agenda Item C-3  
 Covington City Council  
 Date: September 24, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  PARKS AND RECREATION PRIORITIES ADVISORY COMMITTEE (PRePAC) 

PROPOSED CHARTER 
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed PRePAC Charter 
 
PREPARED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
It has been a long standing City Council goal and priority to provide quality recreation and park 
services to the community.  In order to increase the rate of progress towards this goal, at the 
annual Strategic Planning Summit, Council discussed the need for stable and sustainable funding 
for parks and recreation.  Council envisioned a citizen-based effort to recommend strategies for 
obtaining the needed revenue, similar to the Budget Priorities Advisory Committee (BPAC).  
Council provided direction to the Parks and Recreation Director to develop and submit a process 
for establishing a citizen-based effort to recommend strategies for creating a stable, sustainable 
funding stream for parks and recreation.  The new advisory group may include members of the 
Parks and Recreation Commission, former BPAC members and additional citizens. 
 
The City Council and Parks and Recreation Commission had a joint meeting in which they 
discussed the purpose of the PRePAC.  Over the course of three meetings, the Parks and 
Recreation Commission discussed the purpose of the committee and developed a draft charter for 
Council’s consideration.   
 
At the September 10th meeting Council members reviewed the draft charter.  There were no 
suggested changes so the charter is now proposed for adoption. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1.  Modify the charter before adopting it 
2. Request staff to revise the charter 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member  _______________  moves, Council member  
_______________  seconds, to adopt the attached charter. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, Finance Director, City Attorney 
  

25 of 34



ATTACHMENT 1 

Parks and Recreation Priorities Advisory Committee Charter 

Purpose 

• The overarching question for this group is:  how should Covington build a parks 

and recreation system that meets the community’s needs and wants.  How should 

we pay for it? 

• The committee would be tasked to envision a model that would get us to parks and 

recreation goals. 

o Educate and engage the community regarding parks, trails and facilities 

development and maintenance.  

• Provide a report that includes: 

o The city’s vision for parks and recreation services and city facilities 

 Parks 

 Trails 

 Community Center 

 Aquatic Center 

 City Hall 

 Maintenance Facility 

 Recreation programming 

 New ideas and considerations 

o City needs for parks and recreation—both operating and capital 

 The community’s priorities—both operating and capital—within existing 

revenue 

 The community’s priorities for new revenue 

• The community’s willingness to support new revenue 

• The community’s preferred sources of new revenue 

o Recommendations 

 Include election date(s), if applicable 

26 of 34



 

Structure 

• Approximately 15 members willing to participate for about 12 months 

o A balanced representation of civic leaders, local business owners, city residents, 

and especially city registered voters. 

o May include city advisory commission members but must not include City 

Council members or City staff 

o Make an effort to include one youth representative from each local high school; 

students should live and/or work in the city 

o No alternates, all members participate equally 

• Staff will seek nominations from City Council members, city advisory commission 

members, city staff, chamber of commerce, service clubs, and the community at-

large 

• Staff will propose members that represent a wide variety of people and viewpoints 

• Council will consider staff’s recommendations and appoint the committee 

• The committee chair will be selected by the Council 

• The committee will designate a different member as vice chair at the third regular 

meeting so that members can get acquainted with each other 

• Vacancies may be filled in like manner 

• The city’s Parks and Recreation Director will serve as liaison between the committee 

and staff 

• The city Communications and Marketing Manager will assist as applicable 

• Other city staff will assist as applicable 

• City Council members and city staff will not attempt to influence committee 

recommendations 

• The committee will sunset upon issuance of a final report and no later than 

December 31, 2014.  Council may extend the due date for final report and the sunset 

date for the committee, but no later than March 31, 2015. 

27 of 34



 

 

Duties 

• Meet no less than once per month 

• Abide by the Open Public Meetings Act 

• Make decisions by consensus 

o Make decision by majority vote only when consensus is not possible 

• Keep the community informed 

o Use common language, not government jargon 

o Consider the website, newspaper, newsletter, Facebook, etc. 

• Use limited staff time efficiently i.e. focus on activities with a high return on 

investment 

• Submit decisions cards for the 2015 budget process as applicable (no later than July 

2014).  If a ballot issue is recommended the timeframe may be earlier depending on 

the election date chosen. 

• Give a verbal report to Council each month during Commission Reports as 

applicable 

• Prepare a draft report for review and comment by the Parks and Recreation 

Commission and the general public 

• Submit a final report to Council 

o Include minority reports as applicable 

 

28 of 34



 Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 24, 2013 

 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER RESOLUTION REJECTING ALL BIDS FOR THE AQUATICS 

CENTER RENOVATION PROJECT. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Engineer’s Bid Tabulation Summary 
2. Proposed Resolution Rejecting All Bids 

 
PREPARED BY: Fred French, Project Manager 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
The city advertised the 2013 Aquatics Center Renovation Project for bid proposals on August 23 
and 30, 2013.  The city received five timely bid proposals and all five were opened on September 
12, 2013. City staff has reviewed each bid proposal and all are significantly higher than the 
engineer’s estimate of $317,228—the lowest base bid proposal was submitted by Express 
Construction for $433,143 and a minimum bid for Alternative #3 was $412,759.  A breakdown 
of all the bids is provided in the attached Bid Tabulation Summary. (Attachment 1) 
 
Given that all bid proposals for the Project were significantly higher than the engineer’s estimate 
and beyond the available budget (the Project is funded through a state grant of $388,000), staff is 
recommending for the council to pass the attached resolution (Attachment 2) to reject all Project 
bid proposals.  
 
Upon rejection of all bids, city staff recommends to move forward with the Project and re-
advertise for bid proposals based on a revised and reduced scope to stay within the available 
Project budget.  Reducing the scope of the Project and re-advertising for bid proposals will delay 
the Project by approximately three months. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Reject all bids and choose to not proceed with the Project. Terminating the Project will 
require the city to decline the state grant monies and repay that portion of the grant used 
to date for project development. 

2. Identify additional city funds to allocate to the Project and proceed with the lowest 
responsive bidder.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The Project is funded by a Washington State Department of Commerce grant of $388,000.  The 
Project costs to date are approximately $46,848, of which $31,076 has been reimbursed by the 
grant.  If council chooses to terminate the Project, city funds will be needed to repay the state for 
grant monies already reimbursed.   

29 of 34



 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:            Ordinance     X      Resolution         Motion        Other 
  

Council member _____________ moves, Council member______________ 
seconds a motion to adopt a resolution rejecting all bids for the Aquatics 
Center Renovation project and to modify the project scope for re-
advertisement.   
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

30 of 34



BID TABULATION

Contractor Bond Base Deduct #1 Alternate #1 Deduct #2 Alternate #2 Deduct #3 Alternate #3

ESTIMATE 321,688.00$    271,089.00$    

Express X 433,143.00$    14,788.00$           418,355.00$    5,872.00$              427,271.00$    20,384.00$           412,759.00$    

Jones & Roberts X 461,441.00$    12,163.00$           449,278.00$    21,503.00$           439,938.00$    39,096.00$           422,345.00$    

Bayley X 503,300.00$    14,000.00$           489,300.00$    21,800.00$           481,500.00$    38,300.00$           465,000.00$    

CDK X 523,298.00$    17,000.00$           506,298.00$    22,000.00$           501,298.00$    34,000.00$           489,298.00$    

Westmark X 538,800.00$    14,050.00$           524,750.00$    25,850.00$           512,950.00$    39,350.00$           499,450.00$    

City of Covington 

2013 Aquatics Center Renovation
ATTACHMENT 1

31 of 34



RESOLUTION NO. 13-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, REJECTING ALL BIDS FOR 
THE AQUATICS CENTER RENOVATION PROJECT. 

 

 WHEREAS, on August 23rd and 30th, 2013, the City of Covington requested bids for the 
Aquatic Center Renovation Project (“Project”) based on the engineer’s estimated budget of 
$317,228; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the city properly advertised and requested bids for the Project and five (5) 
bid proposals were received; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all timely bid proposals have been evaluated and all bids exceed the 
engineer’s estimate and available project funding; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the city to reject all bids and reevaluate the scope 
of the Aquatic Center Renovation Project; 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Covington, Washington, as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council hereby rejects all bids submitted for the Aquatics 
Center Renovation Project.  
  
 Passed by the City Council on this 24th day of September, 2013. 
 
             

Mayor Margaret Harto 
 
        
Attested: 
 
 
       
Sharron Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Sara Springer, City Attorney  
 
 

ATTACHMENT 2

32 of 34



  
Covington City Council Meeting 
           Date: September 24, 2013  

 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

October 8, 2013 – City Council Regular Meeting  
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

33 of 34



For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, October 8, 2013                                                                           City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
• Safe Schools Week Proclamation – Week of October ___-___, 2013 
• Fire Prevention Week Proclamation – Week of October ___-___, 2013 
• Make a Difference Day Proclamation – October ___, 2013 
• National Community Planning Month Proclamation – October 2013 
• MultiCare Hospital Presentation – Hugh Kodama 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  September 10, 2013 City Council Special and Regular Meetings Minutes and 

September 24, 2013 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Agreement with Kent School District for Cops on Patrol in Schools (Klason) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN 

Draft 
as of 9/19/13 

 

34 of 34

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	09-24-2013 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, September 24, 2013                                                                    City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent Item C-1 Green Sheet 09-24-2013 Voucher Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent Item C-1 Attachments
	Consent Item C-2 Green Sheet Covington Retail Associates Estoppel and SNDA
	Consent Agenda Item C-2
	Covington City Council Meeting

	Consent Item C-2 Attachment 1
	Consent Item C-2 Attachment 2
	Consent Item C-3 Green Sheet & Attachment 2013-9-24 PRePAC Charter Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-3

	Item 1 Blue Sheet 2013-9-24 Blue Sheet Resolution Rejecting All Bidders for Aquatic Center Renovation Project
	Item 1 Attachment 1 2013-9-24 Bid Tabulation
	Sheet1

	Item 1 Attachment 2 2013-9-24 Resolution Rejection of Bids for Aquatic Center Project
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	10-08-2013 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, October 8, 2013                                                                           City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




